
November 15, 2006

FedEx Corporation
Attn: General Counsel’s Office
942 S. Shady Grove Rd.
Memphis, TN 38120

Dear General Counsel of FedEx:

The Project On Government Oversight (POGO) is overhauling and renewing its
Federal Contractor Misconduct Database (www.pogo.org/db/index.cfm), a
compilation of information from public resources regarding government contractors,
including FedEx.  On January 26, 2006, we sent you information regarding findings
relevant to FedEx, which I have enclosed for your reference.  As of today, we have
not received a response from your office.

A written response is certainly in the best interest of everyone involved.  It is the best
way for your company to go on record regarding this process and the instances
identified; your letter will be posted in its entirety on the database.  Several
companies have already responded and have expressed appreciation for the
opportunity to express their views.  POGO would prefer to receive a response by
November 30, 2006 to ensure it is included with the launch of our new database.

If you have any questions, I can be reached at (202) 347-1122.  Thank you for your
time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Scott Amey
General Counsel

Enclosure



Instances

1.
Department of Transportation v. FedEx Corporation (Violations of Hazadrous Materials      
Regulations)
Date:  03/01/2003 (Date of Fine)
Misconduct Type:  Other
Contracting Party:  Non-Governmental
Court Type:  Administrative
Amount:  $9,000
Disposition:  Fine

Synopsis:  FedEx Express Corporation was fined $9,000 in 2003 for violating the Hazardous
Materials Regulations by placing radioactive material that was improperly packaged on an air
carrier. The corporation then failed to notify the Department of Transportation within 30 days of
a hazardous materials incident.

Document(s):
    1.  DOT release

2.
Department of Transportation v. FedEx Ground Package System, Ltd. (Hazardous Materials      
Violations)
Date:  01/01/2003 (Date of Report)
Misconduct Type:  Other
Contracting Party:  Non-Governmental
Court Type:  Administrative
Amount:  $8,400
Disposition:  Fine

Synopsis:  FedEx Ground Package System, Ltd. was fined $8,400 for allegedly violating the
Hazardous Materials Regulations. The company transported a solid of sodium hydroxide in
non-standard packaging, thus violating the regulations.

Document(s):
    1.  DOT release

3.
EEOC v. American Freightways/FedEx Freight East (Violations of Civil Rights Act)
Date:  10/24/2005 (Date of Settlement)
Misconduct Type:  Labor
Contracting Party:  Non-Governmental
Court Type:  Administrative
Amount:  $500,000
Disposition:  Settlement



Synopsis:  FedEx Freight East settled a case in which they were charged with allegedly
preventing 20 African American employees from being promoted based on their race. The
settlement amount was for $500,000 in the form of monetary relief. FedEx is also required to
report promotions after the settlement date. FedEx allegedly violated Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC § 2000d et. seq.

Document(s):
    1.  EEOC Press Release

4.
Shubert v. Federal Express Corporation (Breach of Contract)
Date:  06/30/1999 (Date of Settlement)
Misconduct Type:  Non-governmental Contract Fraud
Contracting Party:  Non-Governmental
Court Type:  Civil
Amount:  $0
Disposition:  Settlement

Synopsis:  From 1996-1997, FedEx imposed a 2% fuel surcharge that was not dictated in their
Service Guide. After one failed attempt to state a cause of action, the plaintiff succeeded in
finding a cause of action under a charge of breach of contract. FedEx Corporation settled for an
undisclosed refund in the form of coupons. The Illinois State Court found that there was
sufficient evidence for a cause of action based on the tort of a breach of contract.

Document(s):
    1.  Court Opinion

5.
Violations of the Americans with Disabilities Act
Date:  03/02/2006 (Date of Jury Ruling)
Misconduct Type:  Labor
Contracting Party:  N/A
Court Type:  Civil
Amount:  $108,000
Disposition:  Judgment Against Defendant

Synopsis:  On March 2, 2006, a federal jury "found in favor of the U.S. Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission (EEOC) in its employment discrimination lawsuit against Federal
Express Corporation (FedEx) for violating the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC
§12101, et. seq.). EEOC had charged the Memphis, Tenn.-based global shipping giant with
failing to provide a reasonable accommodation to Ronald Lockhart, a profoundly deaf employee
who worked as a package handler at the company's Baltimore Ramp. The suit charged Federal
Express with violating the ADA when it failed to provide reasonable accommodations to
Lockhart in the form of American Sign Language interpreters, despite his repeated requests. The
jury found FedEx liable for punitive damages in the amount of $100,000 for its knowing failure



to accommodate Lockhart as well as compensatory damages of $8,000 for the loss of the
accommodation itself."

Document(s):
    1.  EEOC Press Release

6.
Employment Bias
Date:  12/22/2004 (Date of Verdict)
Misconduct Type:  Labor
Contracting Party:  N/A
Court Type:  Civil
Amount:  $1,570,000
Disposition:  Judgment Against Defendant

Synopsis:  On December 22, 2004, a jury "returned a $1.57 million dollar verdict in favor of the
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC)... in their workplace discrimination
lawsuit against Memphis, Tenn.-based shipping giant Federal Express Corporation for violating
Title VII of Civil Rights Act of 1964. The jury found Federal Express liable for retaliation and
the constructive termination of Maines, a 21-year employee of the company, and awarded him
$201,000 in back pay and $1,370,000 in compensatory damages for emotional pain and distress.
Maines, who is white, sought to promote an African American and a Hispanic, both longtime
Federal Express employees, to supervisory positions, but was rebuffed and retaliated against by a
corporate management official who favored a white female recently employed by Federal
Express."

Document(s):
    1.  EEOC Press Release

7.
Failure to Accomodate for Religious Beliefs
Date:  12/30/2005 (Date of Settlement)
Misconduct Type:  Labor
Contracting Party:  N/A
Court Type:  Administrative
Amount:  $0
Disposition:  Administrative Agreement

Synopsis:  On December 30, 2005, the New York State Attorney General's office announced "the
settlement of a case against the Federal Express Corporation (Fed Ex Express) concerning the
company’s accommodation of the religious beliefs and practices of several individuals employed
as couriers in New York City." The investigation began in 2001 by former FedEx employees
who were terminated because of their refusal to cut their hair, which was worn in dreadlocks in
accordance with religious beliefs. Under terms of the settlement, FedEx will modify its Personal
Appearance Policy.



Document(s):
    1.  New York Attorney General Press Release

Pending

1.
Racial Discrimination
Date:  06/05/2006 (Date of Enforcement Action)
Misconduct Type:  Labor
Contracting Party:  N/A
Court Type:  Civil
Amount:  $0
Disposition:  Pending

Synopsis:  The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) "filed a subpoena
enforcement action in its race discrimination investigation of FedEx Corporation to force the
company to furnish key information on personnel procedures. The EEOC is investigating a race
discrimination charge by Tyronne Merritt against Fed Ex which accuses the company of
engaging in a pattern and practice of discriminating against African Americans and Latinos in
promotion... Merritt further alleged that the BST has an adverse impact on African Americans
and Latinos, disproportionately impacting those groups, thus constituting race discrimination in
violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC § 2000, et seq. During its
investigation of Merritt’s allegations, the EEOC issued an administrative subpoena for basic
information about the types of computerized or machine-readable files FedEx maintains
regarding personnel decisions. FedEx refused to comply with the subpoena. In the subpoena
enforcement action, the EEOC asks U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona to order
FedEx Corporation to show cause why it should not comply with the administrative subpoena
issued to the company."

Document(s):
    1.  EEOC Press Release


